UNITED NATIONS

ECONOMIC
AND B \\
SOCIAL COUNCIL

Distr.
GENERAL

E/CN.4/Sub.2/SR. 265
21 ey 1959
ENGT.TSH

OLIGLNAL: FRENCH

COMMISSION ON HUMAN RIGHTS
- SUB-COMMISSION ON PREVENTION OF DISCRIMINATION AND PROTECTION OF MINORITIES
| i ’ Eleventh Sessicn
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE TWO HUNDRED AND SIXTY-FIFTH MERTING

Held at Headquarters, New York,
on Tuesday, 13 Janusry 1959, at 10.45 a.m.

CONTENTS
Study of discrimination'in the matfer ef religiocus righbs and
practices (E/CN.k/Sub.2/L.123/Ad4.1) (coriiived) :

59-08254 [oe

tha



E/CN.4/Sub.2/8R.265

English
Page 2
~ PRESENT:
Chairman: Mr. AWAD {United Arab Republic)
Rapporteur: Mr. SAARIO (Finland)
Members: Mr. BEYHUM (Lebanon)
Mr, CHAYET (France)
Mr. FOMIN (Unicu cf Soviet Socialist Republics)
Mr. HISCOCKS (United Kingdom of Great Britain and
Nerthern I[reland)
Mr. INGLES (Philippines)
Mr. KRISHNASWAMI (India)
Mr. MACHOWSXI (Polend)
Mr. ROY (Haiti)
Mr, SANTA CRUZ (Chile)
Mr. SPAULDING (United Stetes of Awerica)
Also present: Miss MARAS Renresentative of the Commission on

the Status ¢f Women

Represzentative of a specialized agency:

Mr. METALL International Lebour Organisation
Secretariat: Mr. HUMPHREY Director, Division of Human Rights
Mr. LAWSON Secretary of the Sub-Commission

[eos



E/CN.k/Sub.2/SR.265
English
Page 3

STUDY OF DISCRIMINATION IN THE MATTER OF RELIGIOUS RIGHTS AND PRACTICES
(E/CN.4/sub.2/L.123/Add.1) (continued)

XI. Proposals for action (continued)
Rule 5: Forfh of celebration of marriage and its dissolution (continued)

Mr. SANTA CRUZ recalled that Mr. Awad, whose opinion as Chairman must
ﬁecessarily have great weight in the Sub-Commission, had said at the previous :
meeting that rule 5 ought to lay down, on the one hand, the right of everyone to
have marriage rites performed in accordance with his reliigion or belief and, on
the other, the right of the State to have every marriage registered and to
regulate the form of registration. In meny countries the law gave the State a
much more extensive role becausé it was rightly ccosidered that marriage

constituted a solemn contract, which hed important social and economic
consequences for the family and for society. It could not therefore be
argued that the State violated the rights of individuals in regulating marriage.
The text of rule 5, paragraph 2, took both aspects into account: the State
had the right to regulate the form of celebration of marriage, since marriasge had
civil consequences, but everyone was entitled to have marriage rites performed
in accordance with his religion or beliefs. In some countries the religious
'ceremony had c¢ivil consequences; in others, a marriage was not valid from the

legal point of view unless it was duly registered.

The CHAIRMAN, speaking as a member of the Sub-Commission, observed

that in some countries registration was the prineipal element in the celebration

of a marriage end vas equivalent to a ceremony. It had not been his intention
to belittle the value of that ceremony or to criticize the State's right to adopt

such measures.

Mr. HISCOCKS considered that the problem raised by rule 5 was very
complex. There seemed to be a danger that parsgraph 1 might be construed to mean
that everyone had the right to enter into a marrisge even if he did not satisfy
the conditions prescribed by law. He would prefer to see the paragraph amended
to read: “Everyone entitled to merry should have the right to have the marriage
celebrated clther in o form which accords with his religion or belief, or in a
eivil form, or both."

/Q’.



E/CN.4/sub.2/SR.265
English
Page 4

Mr. CHAYET, referring to the comments of certaln members of the Sub-
Commission, said that paragraphs 1 and 2 of rule 5 dealt with the same question
from two different points of view. Paragraph 1 gavé evéryone the right to enter
into s validkmarriage celebrated in & form which was not contrary to lds reiigibn‘
or beliefyand paragraph 2 prohibited the State from compelling anyone to undergo
a religious ceremcny not in conformity with his convictions. The two ideas were
different but comrlementary, vhich explained why scmé members of the Sub-~Commission
had felt that paragraph 1 was unnecessary.

Mr. INGLES observed that the title of rule 5 was correct; the Sube-
Commission was considering the "form of celebration of marriage and its dissolution”
both as a manifestation of a religion or belief and as a rite oxr practice of that
religion or belief. | A

All religions recognized the institﬁtion of merriage but they differed with
regard to the form of celebration marriage. The Sub-Commission was entitled to :
state the principle that everyone had the right to have merriage rights rerformed
in eccordance with his religion or bellef but it was not cowpetent to study the
right to marriage, which was embsdied in the Universal Decleravion of Human Rights
and referred to in the draft Covenant on Civil and Political Rignts.

With regerd to Mr. Hiscocks! suggestion for the amendment of paragraph 1,
he pointed out that under article 22 (2) of the draft Covenant and article 16 (1)
of the Universal'Declaration everyone "of full age" had the right to marry.

The second pert of paragraph 1 of rule 5 (Meue celebrated in a form which
is not contrary to his réligion or belief") introduced an elewernt waiich was
extraneous to the right to enter into‘marriage ag envisaged in article 22 of the
draft Covenant. If the object was to establish a relationship between the right
to enter into a valid marriage end the right to practice or adhere to a religion,
it would be necessary to introduce the provisos embodied in article 16 of the
Universal Declaration of Humen Rights.

The Sub-Commission could only state the principle that everyone of full age
must have the right to enter into a valid merriage without any restriction as to
religion. It could not consider the verious aspects of the State's power to
stipulate what constituted a valid marriage. It could deal only with the form
of celebration of marriage.

[ens



E/CN.4/Sub.2/5R.265
English
Page 5

(Mr. Ingles)

If, moreover, the Sub-Commission envisaged conditions attaching to the right
to enter into merriage other than those mentioned in the Universal Decleration .
and the draft Covenant, it might be formulating a rule with regard to practices
which it had not studied and on which the necessary documentation had not been
available to the Special Rapporteur.

In his view the Sub-Commission would be well-advised to consider deleting
rule 5, paragraph 1.

Mr. SAARIO said that he was in agreement with the views expressed by
Mr. Hiscocks and Mr. Ingles. The right to enter into a marriage depended on the
personal status of the individual and in some countries the parties {to a marriage
had to meet certain requirements regarding age, domicile or healih before they
could enter into a valid marriage. Such restrictions were primarily intended to
safeguard and protect society and could not be regarded as discriminatory measures. .

Miss MAAS (Commission on the Status of Women) thanked the Special
Rapporteur for the statement hé had made at the previous meeting, and wished to
offer scme comments in the light of the studies made by the Commission on the
Status of Women.

The Commission believed that two reguirements must be satisfied if a
marriage was to be valid: the prior consent of the intending spouses and the
registration of the marriage., It must be possible for both parties freely to
express thelr consent. Cerbain recognized religlons, however, prescribed rules
permitting marriage without the consent of the wife. Further, although in most
countries marriages were registered, that was not the case in all countries.

She felt, therefore, that paragraph 1 of rule 5 should incorporate the
fundamental idea of prior consent to the marriage and should be amended to read:

"Everyone should have the right to enter into a valid marriage, to which

both contracting parties give their consent, celebrated in a form which is

not contrary to his religion or belief". ‘

In paragraph 2; a distinction should be made between the celebration of the
marriagé and the registration of the marriage. Celebration did not automatically

meke a marriage legally valid unless the marriage was registered.

/...



E/CN.4/Sub.2/8Rs265
Engllish
Page 6

(Miss Mafias, Commission on the Status of Women)

She noted that in the final phrase of paragraph 3 the Special Rapporteur had
used the verb "profess", which meant "take an active part” in e religion, In other
words, apply all the rules of that religion. However, adherence to a religlon did
not necessarily involve observance of gll its rules: 1t would, therefore,'be
preferable to use the verb "adhere to" and to emend the last part of the senténce
to read: "solely on the ground that he adheres to a particular religion or belief"”,

The CHAIRMAN, speaking as & member of the Sub-Cormission, agreed with the
views expressed by Mr. Ingles and supported hsw suggestion regarding paragraphs 1
and 2 of rule 5, which should not deal with the right to enter into a merriage, but
Jith the right to marry in accordance with the rites and practicas oonne's
religlon or belief, o
He would prefer to delete the latter part of paragraph 3 ("solely on the
grdund that he professes a partiecular religion or belief"). No one should be

prevented from obtaining a divorce 1f it was permitted by his reiigion; if a
person's religion permitted divorce and the State forbade Civoree, the person's
freedom to practise his religion might be impaired. In any éage; the Sub-Commission
was concerned only with the religious celebration of marriage aad not with marriage

as a civil act.

Mr, CHAYET shared that view. The SubeCommisgsion should confine itself
to the form of marriage, Article 16 of the Universel Declaration of Humsn Rights
and article 22 of the draft Covenant did not cover all the requiremenucs & State
ul ght deem necessary for the valid celebration of a marriage to DLe valid., They
did not, for instsnce, deal with the possibility of kinship between the
intending spouses., The wor&iné of rule 5 should be consistent with the
Sub-Commission's limited terms of reference,

Mr. KRISHNASWAMI, Specisl Rapporteur, cobserved that the Sub-Commission
was not coﬁpetent to study the substentive aspecis of the right to marry. In
rule 5 he had strictly confined himself to the formal aspects of marriage. He had
tried to take acecount of the fact that many religions regarded marriage as a

sacrament, and also the case of free-thinkers living in countries where religious
marrisage alone was recognized and merriages were not reguired to be officlally
registered., He was grateful to the members of the Sub-Commission end the
representative of the Commission on the Status of Women for referring to the

various aspects of the problem. , /.
o b w



E/CN.k4/Sub,2/SR. 265

English
Page 7

(Mr, Krishnaswami)

He believed he could meet Mr, Hiscocks! objection to paragraph 1 by adopting
the change suggested by Mr. Ingles and inserting the words "of full age" after the
word "everyone" in order to conform with article 16, paragraph 1 of the Declaration
of Human Rights. With regerd to paragraph 2, in connexion with which Mr. iachowski
had referred at the previous meeting, to the changes In Polish legislation, he
belleved thal the practice of requiring that the clvil ceremony should precede
the religious ceremony was wholly acceptable if the State refrained from any form
of discrimination in the matter of religions or bellefs, and permitted the
celebration of a religious ceremony. He would like to have time to study in
detall the various arguments that hed been advanced in regard to paragraph 3.

Miss MANAS (Commission on the Status of Women) said that the Commission
she represented attached particular importance to the guestion of the age ut which
merriage was permitted, In its opinion, the age qualification was essential as well
as. the reguirement of the prior gomsent of boti partieé.

Rule 6:  Arrangements for disposal of the dead

Mr. INGLES, supported by Mr., Hiscocks, proposed the Celetion of the words
"as far as practicable". In view of the general limitations set out in rule 3,
the words were not only superfluous but weakened the rule embodied in rule 6 by

introducing a two-fold limitation,

Mr. MACHOWSKI said that he would be grateful if the Sp:cial Rapporteur
could expend the rule to cover situations of the kind referred to> in paragraph 283

of his report.

The CHAIRMAN, spesking as a member of the Sub-Commission, suggested that

the phrase "the taking out of funersl processions" might be improved,

Mr. KRT3FNASWAML (Special Rapporteur) emphasized that he had not intended
to impose a two~fold limitation, but had sought to establish s rule that would
assist minorities.that were too small to impose ~ their requirements on the
authorities, with whom methods of persuasion would have to be used. Hé would try
to take the comments of the members of the Sub-Commission into account, but could

fon

only accept them provisionally,



E/CN.4/Sub.2/SR.265
English o
Page 8

Mr. INGLES observed that the point raised by Mr. Krishnaswaml was covered
by rule 1, paragraph 2. : o ”

Rule T7: Dietary practices

Mr. FOMIN suggested that in the interest of uniformity the rule should
be revorded to begin with the word "everyone" rather than the words ™no oze".,
He would not press the suggzestion, but heoped that rule 7 would not be drafted in .
unduly categorical terms,

Mr. CHAYET pointed out that it was evident that if no one should be
"prevented” from observing dietary practices, no one should be forced to observe
them. ‘ ‘

Mr. KRISHNASWAME, Special Repporteur, seld, in repiy to Mr. Fomin, that
he had deliberately adopted'the formula used in rule 7 because, as he had sald at

a previous nmeeting, the authorities had a negative and pot a positive dubty in the

matter, BRule 7 was thus expressed in general terms; it could therefove be applied
in all cases and would cover Shehitah as well as the practices erbolied ir Indien

civil law,.

Rule 8: Pilgrimages

Mr, KRISHNASWAMI, Special Rapporteur, said that he would delete the
second part of paragraph 2 from his text.

Mr, HISCOCKS proposed, in the interest of clarity'thaﬁ‘the words "oy war,
epldemic or shortage of foreign currency” should be inserted after the words "such

limitations as may be imposed",

Mr. FOMIN opposed the proposal, which would maxe it necessary to include
an exhaustive 1ist of the cases in which restrictions might be temporarily imposed.

Rule 9: Training of religious leaders

Mr, KRISHNASWAMI, Special Rapporteur, sald that the last sentence in
paragraph 2 was to be deleted, o

The CHATRMAN, spesking as a member of the Sub-Commission, asked the
Speclal Repporteur to include imems in the list of religious leaders.

/...



E/CN.k4/8ub.2/8R.265
English
Page 9

Mr. FOMIN felt it was important that rule 9 should not be given a
unilateral character. He did not think it was possible to draw up an exhaustive
list but he felt that the rule should cover not ohly religious leaders but also
leaders who, as in the Soviet Union, had nothing to do with religion but whose
activities belonged to the realm of belief. He hoped that the Special Rapporteur
would make an addition to the rule along those lines.

Mr. HISCOCKS said he thought the Special Repporteur's method of giving
selected examples of different types of religious lezders was a good one: it

was a compromise between drawing up an exhaustive list and giving no examples at
8ll. |

The CHAIRMAN, speaking as & member of the Sub-Commission, suggested that,
as the word "leader" was ambiguous, the examples mentioned in paragreph 1 should
be retained and that something should be added to the rule to cover Mr. Fomin's

point with respect to non-religious lesders.

Mr. SANTA CRUZ egreed with the concert expressed in paragraph 2 of rule 9.
Moreover, that particular right was set out in the Universal Decleration of Human
Rights.

Rule 10: Dissemination of relipgion or belief

Mr. INGLES said that he did not quite understand vwhy the Special
Rap@orteur had considered it necessary to refer to limitations in both paragraphs
of rule 10, since the limitations which would presumably apply to the basic rules
&s a whole had already been specified in rule 3.

Mr. SAARTIO agreed with Mr. Ingles and thought that paragraph 2 might
simply be deleted. He felt, however, that the right to disseminate & religion or
belief was a secondary right which could only be recognized in so far as it did
not prejudice any of the other rights set forth in the basic rules and in the
Universal Declaration of Human Rights.

The CHAIRMAN, speaking as & member of the Sub-Commission, suppdrted the
text drafted by the Special Rapporfeur. In some countries religicus proselytism
had often given rise to gbuses and had served as & cloak for activities that were

in no way related to religion. Moreover, if the dissemination of religious
concepts was allowed too much latitude it was lisble to sow discord in a national

Jon



E/CN.4/Sub, 2/318.265
English
Page 10

(The Chalrman)

community which was in the process of formation or consolidation.A It would
therefore seem wilse not to recognlize aes absqlute the right to dis§eminate a

religion or belief.

Bule 11; Ob ections on conscientious grounds

Mr, BEYHWM felt that inGJV¢duals shonld not be compnlled tO suppress
their scruples, The fact that some States recognized objections cn couscientious
grounds while others did rot result in diseriminastion at the international level.
The Sub-Commission should therefore recormend that States which did not recognize
objections on conscientious grounds should revise their position.

Rule 12: Financial measures for the support of a religion or belief

Mi. T Iﬁﬂﬁ@ﬁ ﬂointea out that the préaent,texi of paragraph 1 seemed to
concern only couniiles whizh had a State religion. For countriéskin which the
Church was separate Iirom the Suate iv would seem logical to deletve the words
"which is not in conformity with his convictions". Moreover, the vresent wording
of parsgrepu 1 seemed to imply that the supporters of a particular religion could
be ccmpelled to contribute to its support. It would be better for the rule not
to be of a peremptory character and for the financial contributions in question to
be voluntery, He therefore thought that the Special Rapporteur might revise the
text in such a way as to distirgulsh between the case of a State religlon and that
of separation of Church and State,

@E;“ggggg agreed with Mr, Ingles that a rigid interpretation of
paragraph 1 woull make it poésible to impose upon some cltizens a financilal
oblizetion which ﬁould be inconsistent with the principle of freedom of religion,
The Sub-Commission should draft a rule which was perfectly clear and did not
recommend that States should coﬁpel their nationals to give financial support to
a religion whether or not it was in conformity with their convictions. He
dbjéctea; however, to sny distinction being made between a State religion end the
sepeiatiéﬁ of Church and Stete, for such & distinetion would be discriminatery and
woﬁld, ianact; Sustify vorious discriminatory measures &nd privileges serving the
interests of the State religion. The Sub-Commission should provide general rules
vhich d4id not allow of any privileges or exceptions.



E/CN.4/Sub.2/SR.265
English
Page 11

Mr. SANTA CRUZ agreed with Mr. Fomin that paragraph 1 should be more
clearly worded so that no one would be coumpelled to contribute to the support of a

particular religion. Paragraph 3, however, wés perfectly clear and had the merit

of clarifying the meaning of paragraph 1 in some specific cases.

Mr. INGLES felt that if the Special Rapporteur agreed to his suggestion
that the words "which is not in conformity with his convictions” should be deleted,
paragraph 1 ﬁoul& be acceptable as a general rule, the permissiblé exceptions being
mentioned in paragraph 3. '

Mr. SPAULDING supported that suggestion.

Mr. HISCOCKS drew the Special Rapporteur's attention to the system which

he belleved was still in force in Germany, where a citizen, by he very fact of
declaring his adherence to & specific belief, committed himself to the payment of
a special tax. The deletion which Mr. Ingles proposed would by implication,
condemn that system, which produced good results and dié not threaten the freedom
of the individual.

In reply to a remerk by the CHAIRMAN, Mr. KRISKIASWAMI, Special
Rapporteur, said that in some countries the Govermment levizd a special tax
designed to support State religion. In drafting paragraph 7 he had wanted to
stipulate thet in such cases the Government should not levy that tax on citizens
of 8 different faith. Moreover, even where Church and State were separate there

were cases in which certain religions or sects exacted a finercial contribution and
the judicial apparatus of the State intervened to enforce payment. Any member who
refused to pay had, of course, the option of giving up his religion or belief. In
other cases, the Government could grant religlons or religious institutions
subsidies out of the State's general budget. Such subsidies were sometimes
necessary for traditional or artistic reasons. For instance, the Govermments of
the Soviet Union and of France had assumed responsibility for the maintenance of
historical places of worship. An unduly rigid conception of the separation of
Church and State might result in precious relics of the past beilng abandoned and
left to fall into disrepair.

Mr. SANTA CRUZ hoped that the Special Rapporteur would draft a revised
text vhich would meet some of Mr. Fomin's objections. If Mr. Ingles' suggestion
were accepted and the last clause of parsgraph 1 were deleted, that paragraph

/o




E/CN.L4/Sub. 2/33.265
English
Page 12

(Mr. Santa Cruz)

would allow of a brosder interpretatmon. The wbrd‘“compellea”;'ﬁbweéer,<was ,
unduly restrictive. The main idea should be that finemcial obligatigné based on
religion should not be inposed from outside.‘ On_the otner hand;rit wes qﬁ‘te |
legitimate for the member of a group to assume financial commitments deriving from
his free a&her ence to the groun.

Mr. INGLuJ,fel+ that a clear d¢st;vﬂt40n suould be sade between & State
which levied a tax for the purpose of subsidizing the expeises of a rcllgion or
a religious institution and & State which enforced certain commltments deriving
from adherence to a religious group. The latter wabs ¢nly a specific instance
of the observance of contractusl obligations.

The meeting rose at 1.5 p.m.






